

Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

22 July 2021

Mr David Basheer Secretary/Treasurer Australian Hotels Association

By e-mail: aha@aha.org.au

Dear Mr Basheer

Australian Hotels Association Financial Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 - FR2020/286

On 12 July 2021 I sent a letter to you regarding the filing of your 31 December 2020 financial report by the Registered Organisations Commission.

This letter under the sub-heading "Reporting guideline activities – not disclosed" omitted the following words after "The notes/officer's declaration statement contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting guideline categories except the following:"

• Item 19 - have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit

A replacement letter with the correct wording is attached.

Please accept my sincere apologies for this error.

Yours faithfully

KEN MORGAN Financial Reporting Specialist Registered Organisations Commission



Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

22 July 2021

Mr David Basheer Secretary/Treasurer Australian Hotels Association

By e-mail: aha@aha.org.au

Dear Mr Basheer

Replacement for letter of 12 July 2021

Australian Hotels Association Financial Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 - FR2020/286

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 31 December 2020 for the Australian Hotels Association (**the reporting unit**). The financial report was lodged with the Registered Organisations Commission (**ROC**) on 8 July 2021.

The financial report has now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.

Whilst the 2020 report has been filed the following should be addressed in the preparation of the next financial report.

1. Timescale requirements

As you are aware, an organisation is required under the RO Act to undertake certain steps in accordance with specified timelines. Information about these timelines can be found on the ROC website. In particular, I draw your attention to the fact sheet titled 'Financial reporting process' which explains the timeline requirements, and the fact sheet titled 'Summary of financial reporting timelines' which sets out the timelines in diagrammatical format.

I note that the following timescale requirements were not met:

Full report must include auditor's statement

The original designated officer's certificate submitted to the ROC on 25 June 2021 stated that the 'full report' was provided to members on 31 May 2021 and presented to the committee of management on 3 June 2021. However, a 'full report' must include the auditor's statement in accordance with section 265(1) of the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.* The auditor's statement was not signed until 23 June 2021 meaning that a 'full report' was not provided to members nor presented to a committee of management meeting.

Following discussions with the ROC the reporting unit provided a 'full report' (including the auditor's statement) to members on 5 July 2021 and presented this report to the committee of management on 8 July 2021.

2. General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR)

Reporting guideline activities - not disclosed

Item 21 of the reporting guidelines states that if any activity described within items 10-20 of the reporting guidelines has not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included the GPFR or in an officer's declaration statement.

The notes/officer's declaration statement contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting guideline categories except the following:

• Item 19 - have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit

Should you wish to discuss the matters raised in this letter, or if you require further information on the financial reporting requirements of the Act, I may be contacted on (03) 9603 0707 or by email at <u>ken.morgan@roc.gov.au</u>

Yours faithfully

K.Marr

KEN MORGAN Financial Reporting Specialist Registered Organisations Commission



Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

12 July 2021

Mr David Basheer Secretary/Treasurer Australian Hotels Association

By e-mail: aha@aha.org.au

Dear Mr Basheer

Australian Hotels Association Financial Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 - FR2020/286

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 31 December 2020 for the Australian Hotels Association (**the reporting unit**). The financial report was lodged with the Registered Organisations Commission (**ROC**) on 8 July 2021.

The financial report has now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.

Whilst the 2020 report has been filed the following should be addressed in the preparation of the next financial report.

1. Timescale requirements

As you are aware, an organisation is required under the RO Act to undertake certain steps in accordance with specified timelines. Information about these timelines can be found on the ROC website. In particular, I draw your attention to the fact sheet titled 'Financial reporting process' which explains the timeline requirements, and the fact sheet titled 'Summary of financial reporting timelines' which sets out the timelines in diagrammatical format.

I note that the following timescale requirements were not met:

Full report must include auditor's statement

The original designated officer's certificate submitted to the ROC on 25 June 2021 stated that the 'full report' was provided to members on 31 May 2021 and presented to the committee of management on 3 June 2021. However, a 'full report' must include the auditor's statement in accordance with section 265(1) of the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.* The auditor's statement was not signed until 23 June 2021 meaning that a 'full report' was not provided to members or presented to a committee of management meeting.

Following discussions with the ROC the reporting unit provided a 'full report' (including the auditor's statement) to members on 5 July 2021 and presented this report to the committee of management on 8 July 2021.

2. General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR)

Reporting guideline activities - not disclosed

Item 21 of the reporting guidelines states that if any activity described within items 10-20 of the reporting guidelines has not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included the GPFR or in an officer's declaration statement.

The notes/officer's declaration statement contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting guideline categories except the following:

Should you wish to discuss the matters raised in this letter, or if you require further information on the financial reporting requirements of the Act, I may be contacted on (03) 9603 0707 or by email at <u>ken.morgan@roc.gov.au</u>

Yours faithfully

KIIIMA

KEN MORGAN Financial Reporting Specialist Registered Organisations Commission

AUSTRALIAN HOTELS ASSOCIATION – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961

CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER

I, David Basheer, being the Accounting Officer of the Australian Hotels Association – National Body certify:

- a) the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Reporting Unit for the period ended 31 December 2020 referred to in *Section 268* of the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009*;
- b) the full report was provided to members of the Reporting Unit on 5 July 2021.
- c) the full report was presented to a meeting of the Committee of Management of the Reporting Unit on 8 July 2021 in accordance with Section 266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and

David Basheer National Secretary/Treasurer

Dated at Sydney: 8 July 2021

AUSTRALIAN HOTELS ASSOCIATION – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

On 26 May 2021, the Committee of Management of the Australian Hotels Association – National Body passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) for the year ended 31 December 2020:

The Committee of Management declares that in its opinion:

- a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
- b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guideline or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("RO Act").
- c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of the Reporting Unit for the financial year to which they relate;
- d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Reporting Unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
- e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:
 - meetings of the Committee of Management were held in accordance with the rules of the Association; and
 - the financial affairs of the Reporting Unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the Association; and
 - the financial records of the Reporting Unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; and
 - where the Association consists of two or more Reporting Units, the financial records of the Reporting Unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other Reporting Units of the Association; and
 - where information has been sought in any request by a member of the Reporting Unit or the Commissioner duly made under Section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the member or the Commissioner; and
 - where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission under Section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

David Basheer

National Secretary/Treasurer

Dated at Sydney: 23 June 2021

AUSTRALIAN HOTELS ASSOCIATION - NATIONAL BODY

ABN 78 756 030 961

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

Certificate by Prescribed Designated Officer	1
Report Required Under Subsection 255(2A)	2
Operating Report	3 - 5
Statement of Comprehensive Income	6
Statement of Financial Position	7
Statement of Changes in Equity	8
Statement of Changes in Cash Flows	9
Notes to the Financial Statements	10 - 35
Committee of Management Statement	36
Independent Auditor's Report	37 - 39

REPORT REQUIRED UNDER SUBSECTION 255(2A) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) on the reporting unit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
Categories of Expenditures:		
Remuneration and other employment-related costs and expenses- employees	512,536	603,063
Advertising	-	-
Operating costs	530,290	591,675
Donations to political parties	73,956	299,001
Legal costs	28,635	29,880
-		
Total	1,145,417	1,523,619

.....

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer

Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

OPERATING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Committee of Management presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the reporting unit, as conducted through the council and the executive board during the past year fell into the following categories:

- Provision of industrial support to members including advice on legal and legislative matters, contractual obligations and representation of state members. Administration of Federal awards, the variation of awards following major test cases.
- Media and communications to members and to the broader community via media releases in support
 of campaigns, targeted publications including national magazines.
- Provision of information for members providing up to date material relevant to hotels.
- Organisation of events to members such as Awards for Excellence, National Convention, charity fundraising etc. in order to recognise their achievements and contribution to the community.

Review of Principal Activities

The Committee of Management has reviewed its principal activities and is satisfied that activities have been successfully conducted throughout the year.

Results of Operations

The results of the reporting unit's activities were consistent with the reporting unit's aims and activities.

The operating surplus for the year ended 31 December 2020 is \$603,013 (2019: surplus of \$15,770). The Management committee has considered the going concern principle and is satisfied that the going concern concept is appropriate.

The COVID 19 had no significant impact on the revenue and the Association's expenses significantly reduced due to various travels not taking place due to restrictions.

Significant Changes in the Nature of Principal Activities and Financial Affairs

There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities and financial affairs undertaken by the reporting unit during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Right of Members to Resign

Members have the right to resign their membership in accordance with rule 32, which reads as follows:

- 1) A member of the reporting unit may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to the Branch Secretary of the Branch of which it is a member.
- 2) A notice of resignation from membership of the reporting unit takes effect:
 - (a) Where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the reporting unit:
 - (i) on the day on which the notice is received by the reporting unit; or
 - (ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; whichever is later; or

OPERATING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Right of Members to Resign (Continued)

Members have the right to resign their membership in accordance with rule 32, which reads as follows:

- 2) A notice of resignation from membership of the reporting unit takes effect: (Continued)
 - (b) In any other case:
 - (i) at the end of two (2) weeks after the notice is received by the reporting unit; or
 - (ii) on the day specified in the notice;
 - (iii) whichever is later
- 3)

Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of the reporting unit, in relation to a period before the member's resignation from the reporting unit took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the name of the reporting unit in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the reporting unit.

- 4) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in sub rule (1) shall be taken to have been received by the reporting unit when it was delivered.
- 5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the reporting unit is not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub rule (1).
- 6) A resignation from membership of the reporting unit is valid even if it is not affected in accordance with the rule if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the reporting unit that the resignation has been accepted.

Officers or members who are Superannuation Fund Trustee(s) or Director of a Company that is a

Superannuation Fund Trustee

Mr. Mark Robertson (who is an executive member) is also director of Hostplus Superannuation Industry Fund representing the National Body. The alternate director is Neil Randail.

Number of Members

The number of persons who, at the end of the reporting period, were recorded on the Register of Members of the reporting unit was 5,334.

Number of Employees

The number of persons who, at the end of the reporting period, employees of the reporting unit comprised of 1 full time and 2 part time staff.

OPERATING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the following persons held membership of the Committee of Management of the reporting unit:

Name	Position	Period Position Held
Scott Leach	President	Full year
David Basheer	Secretary/Treasurer ²	Full year
John Dabner	President Accommodation Division	Full year
Paul Jubb	Branch President TAS	Full year
David Canny	Senior Vice President	Full year
Neil Randall	Branch President WA	Full year
Paul Palmer	Vice President	Full year
Michael Capezio	Branch President ACT	Full year
Tom McGuire	Branch President QLD	Full year

Members of National Board who have held office during the financial year:

Andrew Clark Andrew Cairns Andrew Bullock Ashok Parekh Cráig Jervis **David Canny** David Curry **David Basheer** Des Kennedy Joanne Blair John Dabner Kim Maloney OAM Lynette Humphreys Mark Robertson OAM Martin Peirson Jones Matthew Nikakis

Matthew Binns Michael Capezio Neil Randall Paul Stocks Paul Jubb Paul Palmer Peter Harris Philip Webster **Richard Deery Rolly De With** Scott Leach Scott Armstrong Todd Handy Tom McGuire Tony Condon Anthony Page

.

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

÷y

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
Revenue from contracts with customers	2		
Membership subscription	2(a)	-	-
Affiliation fees	2(a)	2,400	2,400
Capitation fees	2(a)	955,904	955,904
Other revenue	2(b)	1,022,135	1,141,236
Total revenue from contracts with customers		1,980,439	2,099,540
Income for furthering objectives	2		
Grants and donations	2(c)	100,000	-
Total income for furthering objectives		100,000	-
Other income			
Revenue from recovery of wages activity	2(d)	-	-
Interest income	2(d)	9,356	17,782
Other income	2(d)	168,168	305,414
Total other income		177,524	323,196
Total income		2,257,963	2,422,736
Expenses:			
Accommodation divisional survey and operational costs		(305,246)	(402,593)
Affiliation fees		-	-
Employee benefits expenses	3(a)	(512,536)	(603,063)
Depreciation expenses	9,13	(57,056)	(36,231)
Consultancy expenses		(56,325)	(30,000)
Legal expenses	3(d)	(28,635)	(29,880)
Marketing and convention expenses		(3,909)	(246,314)
Executive and Council conferences and meetings		(14,168)	(16,715)
Travel expenses		(67,569)	(148,355)
Bank charges and finance costs		(5,260)	(3,139)
Administration expenses	3(b)	(530,290)	(591,675)
Donations	3(c)	(73,956)	(299,001)
Total expenses		(1,654,950)	(2,406,966)
Surplus for the year		603,013	15,770
Other comprehensive income			•
Total comprehensive income attributable to the members		603,013	15,770

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		\$	\$
ASSETS			
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash and cash equivalents	5	868,829	643,520
Financial assets	8	1,000,000	700,000
Trade and other receivables	6	217,800	261,082
Other current assets	7	91,522	16,103
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		2,178,151	1,620,705
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			
Financial assets	8	779	779
Property, plant and equipment	9	1,185,580	1,217,155
Right of use asset	13	66,228	88,935
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS		1,252,587	1,306,869
TOTAL ASSETS		3,430,738	2,927,574
LIABILITIES			
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables	10	93,501	167,560
Provisions	11	37,008	32,642
Contract liabilities	12	433,249	442,277
Lease liabilities	13	22,206	24,996
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES		585,964	667,475
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Lease liabilities	13	45,780	64,118
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES		45,780	64,118
TOTAL LIABILITIES		631,744	731,593
NET ASSETS		2,798,994	2,195,981
EQUITY			
Asset revaluation reserve		885,378	885,378
Retained surplus		1,913,616	1,310,603
TOTAL EQUITY		2,798,994	2,195,981

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	Asset revaluation reserve	Retained surplus	Total
Balance at 1 January 2019	885,378	1,294,833	2,180,211
Net surplus attributable to members of the entity	-	15,770	15,770
Revaluation of Buildings	-	-	-
Balance at 31 December 2019	885,378	1,310,603	2,195,981
Net surplus attributable to members of the entity	-	603,013	603,013
Revaluation of Buildings	-	-	-
Balance at 31 December 2020	885,378	1,913,616	2,798,994

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Receipts from capitation fees		1,051,494	1,051,494
Receipts from promotional and sundry activities		1,179,806	1,750,871
Interest received		9,356	17,782
Dividends received		21	67
Receipts from Government subsidy		100,000	· -
Payments to employees, promotional expenses and other expenses		(1,791,096)	(2,526,208)
Interest paid		(370)	(370)
Net cash provided by operating activities	15	549,211	293,636
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Payments for property, plant and equipment		(2,774)	-
Payments for financial assets		(300,000)	(700,000)
Net cash used in investing activities		(302,774)	(700,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Repayment of lease liabilities		(21,128)	(1,713)
Net cash used in financing activities		(21,128)	(1,713)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held		225,309	(408,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		643,520	1,051,597
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	5	868,829	643,520

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

9

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are for Australian Hotels Association - National Body (the "reporting unit").

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Accounting Standards and Australian Board ("AASB") and the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009*. The reporting unit is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 31 May 2021 by the Members of the Committee.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the reporting unit in the preparation of the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

the reporting unit is exempt from income tax under Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost of fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Freehold property

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Increases in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Revaluation decreases that offset previous increases of the same class shall be recognised in other comprehensive income under the heading of revaluation surplus. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss. As the revalued buildings are depreciated, the difference between depreciation recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, which is based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost, is transferred from the revaluation surplus to retained earnings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The valuation has taken into account the requirements of AASB 116 which defines 'fair value' and the concepts of 'market value'. The date of the valuation was 30 June 2019 and the property was inspected on 4 July 2019.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and is therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over the asset's useful life commencing from the time the asset is available for use. The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Class of fixed asset	Depreciation rate
Buildings	2.5%
Office equipment	17% - 27%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(c) Leases

At inception of a contract, the reporting unit assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is considered to contain a lease if it allows the reporting unit the right to control the use of an identified asset over a period of time in return for consideration.

Where a contract or arrangement contains a lease, the reporting unit recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the lease.

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which is the present value of future lease payments adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any make-good obligations and initial direct costs incurred. Lease assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of their useful life and the lease term. Periodic adjustments are made for any remeasurements of the lease liabilities and for impairment losses.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of future minimum lease payments, discounted using the reporting unit's incremental borrowing rate if the rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate. Minimum lease payments include fixed payments, amounts expected to be paid under a residual value guarantee, the exercise price of purchase options for which the reporting unit is reasonably certain to exercise and incorporate the reporting unit's expectations of lease extension options.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Leases (Continued)

At inception of a contract, the reporting unit assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is considered to contain a lease if it allows the reporting unit the right to control the use of an identified asset over a period of time in return for consideration.

Short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (\$10,000 or less) are recognised as incurred as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Low value assets comprise computers and items of IT equipment.

(d) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The reporting unit measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or nonrecurring basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.

Fair value is the price the reporting unit would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (ie the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the reporting unit at the end of the reporting period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of liabilities may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.

(e) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the reporting unit becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the reporting unit commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified as fair value through profit or loss, in which case transaction costs are immediately recognised as expenses in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest method, or cost as applicable. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method.

The *effective interest method* is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a consequential recognition of an income or expense item in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm's length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets recognised by the reporting unit are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, subject to their classification and whether the reporting unit irrevocably designates the financial asset on initial recognition at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) in accordance with the relevant criteria in AASB 9 or fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities recognised by the reporting unit are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the reporting unit assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence that impairment as a result of one or more events (a "loss event") has occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account.

When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have been renegotiated, the reporting unit recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking into account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are duly considered.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the reporting unit no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the related obligations are discharged or cancelled, or have expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the profit or loss.

(f) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the reporting unit reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the reporting unit estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset.

(g) Employee benefits

Provision is made of the reporting unit's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may not satisfy vesting requirements. Those cash outflows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand; deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months of less and bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

(j) Revenue and other income

Reporting unit enters into various arrangements where it receives consideration from another party. These arrangements include consideration in the form of capitation fees, levies, grants, and donations.

The timing of recognition of these amounts as either revenue or income depends on the rights and obligations in those arrangements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Where reporting unit has a contract with a customer, reporting unit recognises revenue when or as it transfers control of goods or services to the customer. Reporting unit accounts for an arrangement as a contract with a customer if the following criteria are met:

- the arrangement is enforceable; and

- the arrangement contains promises (that are also known as performance obligations) to transfer goods or services to the customer (or to other parties on behalf of the customer) that are sufficiently specific so that it can be determined when the performance obligation has been satisfied.

Capitation fees

Where reporting unit's arrangement with a branch or another reporting unit meets the criteria to be a contract with a customer, reporting unit recognises the capitation fees promised under that arrangement when or as it transfers the reporting unit.

In circumstances where the criteria for a contract with a customer are not met, the reporting unit will recognise capitation fees as income upon receipt (as specified in the income recognition policy below).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Sponsorship revenue

Sponsorship revenue is recognised upon the execution of the contracts with the corporate sponsors and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the sponsorship contracts.

Income of reporting unit as a Not-for-Profit Entity

Consideration is received by reporting unit to enable the entity to further its objectives. Reporting unit recognises each of these amounts of consideration as income when the consideration is received (which is when reporting unit obtains control of the cash) because, based on the rights and obligations in each arrangement:

- the arrangements do not meet the criteria to be contracts with customers because either the arrangement is unenforceable or lacks sufficiently specific promises to transfer goods or services to the customer; and

- reporting unit's recognition of the cash contribution does not give rise to any related liabilities.

Reporting unit receives cash consideration from the following arrangements whereby that consideration is recognised as income upon receipt:

- donations and voluntary contributions from members; and

- government grants.

Interest income

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.

Rental income

Leases in which reporting unit, as a lessor, do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as income in the period in which they are earned.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of the GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office ("ATO").

Receivables and payables are stated as inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

(I) Comparative figures

When required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

Where the reporting unit has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

(m) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the reporting unit during the reporting period that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the reporting unit has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

(o) Liabilities Relating to Contracts with Customers

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before reporting unit transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities include deferred income. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when reporting unit performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The reporting unit evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable *expectation of future events* and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the organisation.

Impairment - general

The reporting unit assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and events specific to the reporting unit that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts or relevant assets are reassessed, using value-in-use calculations, which incorporate various key assumptions.

(q) New Accounting Standards Adopted During the Financial Year

The reporting unit has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Impact on adoption of AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, "information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity." The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

Future Australian Accounting Standards

New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and are applicable to future reporting periods that are expected to have a future financial impact on the reporting unit include:

AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

This Standard amends AASB 101 *Presentation of Financial Statements* to clarify requirements for the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position as current or non-current. For example, the amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. This Standard applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted. The reporting unit does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have an impact on its financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME			

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

A disaggregation of reporting unit's revenue by type of arrangement is provided on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The table below also sets out a disaggregation of revenue by type of customer:

Type of customer		
Members	*	-
Other reporting units	958,304	958,304
Government	1	-
Other parties	1,022,135	1,141,236
Total revenue from contracts with customers	1,980,439	2,099,540

Disaggregation of income for furthering activities

A disaggregation of reporting unit's income by type of arrangement is provided on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The table below also sets out a disaggregation of income by funding source:

	Income funding sources			
	Members		-	•
	Other reporting units		-	-
	Government		100,000	-
	Other parties			-
	Total income for furthering activities		100,000	-
(a)	Operating activities			
	Membership subscriptions		-	-
	Levies from members		-	-
	Other revenue from another reporting unit		-	-
	Affiliation fees		2,400	2,400
	Capitation fees:			
	Capitation fees - general levy from States	(i)	449,904	449,904
	Capitation fees - TAA levy from States	(i)	506,000	506,000
	Total Capitation fees		955,904	955,904

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued)

(a) Operating activities (Continued)

(i) Breakdown of capitation fees from States

	General levy from States		TAA levy from States	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	\$	\$
New South Wales	145,094	145,094	163,185	163,185
Victoria	112,476	112,476	126,500	126,500
Queensland	91,105	91,105	102,465	102,465
South Australia	32,618	32,618	36,685	36,685
Western Australia	49,489	49,489	55,660	55,660
Tasmania	10,122	10,122	11,385	11,385
Australian Capital Territory	4,500	4,500	5,060	5,060
Northern Territory	4,500	4,500	5,060	5,060
	449,904	449,904	506,000	506,000

There are no other revenue from another reporting unit other than those disclosed above.

		2020 \$	2019 \$
(b)	Other revenue		
	Promotional	1,022,135	1,141,236
(c)	Grants or donations		
	Grants - cashflow boost	100,000	-
	Donations	-	-
		100,000	-
(d)	Other income		
	Dividends received	21	67
	Revenue from recovery of wages activity	-	-
	Rental income	168,147	162,883
	Interest received	9,356	17,782
	Sundry income	-	142,464
		177,524	323,196
	Total revenue and other income	2,257,963	2,422,736

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 3: EXPENSES			
3(a) Employee Expenses			
Holders of office:			
Wages and salaries		283,425	269,157
Superannuation		25,000	25,000
Leave and other entitlements		6,520	10,334
Separation and redundancies		-	-
Other employee expenses		-	-
		314,945	304,491
Employees other than office holders:		400.040	200.022
Wages and salaries		180,849	260,033
Superannuation		18,896	37,308
Leave and other entitlements		(2,154)	1,231
Separation and redundancies		-	-
Other employee expenses			-
		197,591	298,572
Total employee expenses		512,536	603,063
3(b) Administration expenses			
Industrial relations expense		5,400	5,602
Accounting expenses		82,834	85,326
Body corporate and outgoings		89,862	67,856
Expenses incurred in relation to special project		11,332	3,885
Operating expenses		189,151	74,640
Insurance expenses		33,040	40,431
Power Purchase Agreement project		-	168,944
Short term lease expenses		-	22,917
Sponsorship support		21,752	-
Subscriptions expenses		96,919	122,074
Total Operating Cost		530,290	591,675
3(c) Grants and Donations:			
Grants that were \$1,000 or less		-	-
Grants that exceeded \$1,000 or less		-	-
Donations that were \$1,000 or less		2,215	7,671
Donations that exceeded \$1,000		71,741	291,330
		73,956	299,001
2(d) Logal avances include:			
3(d) Legal expenses include:			
Litigation Other legal matters		- 28,635	29,880
Other legal matters		28,635	29,880
		28,035	29,880

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
NOTE 4: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION		
Remuneration of the auditor of the reporting unit for:		
Auditing the financial statements	19,900	19,500
	19,900	19,500
NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
Cash at bank	868,829	643,520
	868,829	643,520
Reconciliation of Cash		
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the financial		
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to items in the Statement		
of Financial Position as follows:		
Cash and cash equivalents	868,829	643,520
NOTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES		
Trade receivables:	217,800	261,082
Less: allowance for expected credit losses	-	-
Receivable from another reporting unit	-	-
-	217,800	261,082
NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS		
Prepayments	91,522	16,103
NOTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS		
CURRENT		
Financial assets at amortised cost		
a. Financial assets at amortised cost:		
- Term deposits	1,000,000	700,000
Total financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	700,000
NON-CURRENT		
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income		
a. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:		
Listed investments, at fair value		
- Shares in Insurance Australia Group Limited	779	779
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	779	779

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT	2020	2019
	\$	\$
Building - 24 Brisbane Avenue, Barton at fair value	1,450,000	1,450,000
Less: accumulated depreciation	(267,183)	(233,785)
	1,182,817	1,216,215
Office equipment - at cost	42,505	39,731
Less: accumulated depreciation	(39,742)	(38,791)
	2,763	940
Total property, plant and equipment	1,185,580	1,217,155

Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

		Office	
Movements in carrying amounts	Building	equipment	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Balance at 31 December 2018	1,249,613	1,881	1,251,494
Addition	• 7	-	-
Revaluation	-	-	-
Depreciation expense	(33,398)	(941)	(34,339)
Balance at 31 December 2019	1,216,215	940	1,217,155
Additions	-	2,774	2,774
Revaluations	-	-	-
Depreciation expense	(33,398)	(951)	(34,349)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020	1,182,817	2,763	1,185,580

The land and building, being located at Unit 1, 24 Brisbane Avenue, Barton was inspected by CBRE Valuations Pty Limited on 4 July 2019. The valuation of property has been determined on a 'market value' basis. The property is recognised at fair value based on the valuation performed as at 30 June 2019 is in line with the carrying value of the property. This is equivalent to fair value and in accordance with AASB 116, see note 18.

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			
Accounts payable - general		36,755	22,436
Payable to other reporting units		-	-
Accounts payable - related to legal costs (other matters)		-	-
Accounts payable - related to legal costs (litigation)		-	-
Accrued expenditure		48,171	69,893
Net GST (receivable)/payable		(15,949)	34,913
Other payables		24,524	40,318
		93,501	167,560

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
NOTE 11: PROVISIONS	\$	\$
Provision for annual leave - holders of office	37,008	30,488
Provision for annual leave - employees other than office holders	-	2,154
	37,008	32,642

There are no other provisions required to be recognised by the reporting unit other than those disclosed above.

NOTE 12: CONTRACT LIABILITIES		
Income received in advance	433,249	442,277
	433,249	442,277
NOTE 13: LEASES		
(i) Amount recognised in the statement of financial position		
Right of use asset - office	90,827	90,827
Accumulated depreciation - Right of use asset	(24,599)	(1,892)
	66,228	88,935
Lease liabilities - current	22,206	24,996
Lease liabilities - non-current	45,780	64,118
	67,986	89,114
No additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial year. (ii) Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income		
Depreciation charge - right of use asset	22,707	1,892
Interest expense (included in bank charges and finance costs)	3,872	370
	26,579	2,262
The reporting unit has a 4 year lease with the Brewers Association in respect to the which expires in 2023.	e office occupied	in Canberra,
NOTE 14: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS	2020 \$	2019 \$
Operating lease commitments - as lessor	•	Ŧ
Non-cancellable operating lease contracted for but not		
recognised in the financial statements		
Receivables - minimum lease receipts		
Not later than 12 months	166,733	168,250
Later than 12 months but not later than 5 years	27,946	202,069

194,679

370,319

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 14: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The property lease commitment is a non-cancellable operating lease with a five year term, with rent received monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease receipts shall be increased by the Consumer Price Index.

NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION	2020 \$	2019 \$
(A) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with surplus		
Surplus	603,013	15,770
Non-cash flows in profit:		
Depreciation expense	57,056	36,231
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Decrease in trade receivables	43,282	144,785
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments	(75,419)	44,483
(Decrease) in trade and other payables	(74,059)	(9,837)
(Decrease)/increase in income received in advance	(9,028)	50,639
Increase in provisions	4,366	11,565
Net cash from operating activities	549,211	293,636
(B) Cash flow information		
Cash outflows		
Amounts paid to the NSW Association for accounting, TAA CEO service, media support, secretarial service and others	247,655	239,562
Amounts paid to the ACT Association for general administration	27,500	17,650
Amounts paid to the WA Association for marketing, policy support and reimbursements	60,699	80,897
Amounts paid to the TAS Association for reimbursements	23,044	4,974
Amounts paid to the VIC Association for reimbursements	562	1,664
Total cash outflows	359,460	344,747
Cash inflows <u>Breakdown of capitation fees from States</u>		

	General levy from States		TAA levy from States	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	\$	\$
New South Wales	159,603	159,603	197,453	197,453
Victoria	123,724	123,724	153,064	153,064
Queensland	100,217	100,217	123,983	123,983
South Australia	35,880	35,880	44,389	44,389
Western Australia	54,438	54,438	67,349	67,349
Tasmania	11,135	11,135	13,776	13,776
Australian Capital Territory	4,949	4,949	6,123	6,123
Northern Territory	4,949	4,949	6,123	6,123
	494,895	494,895	612,260	612,260

25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)		
Breakdown of affiliation fees from States		
New South Wales	330	330
Victoria	330	330
Queensland	330	330
South Australia	330	330
Western Australia	330	330
Tasmania	330	330
Australian Capital Territory	330	330
Northern Territory	330	330
	2,640	2,640
Amounts received from the NSW Association for other reimbursements	-	15,752
Amounts received from the ACT Association for rent	13,750	13,750
NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS		
(a) Directors' remuneration		
Remuneration received or receivable by all directors of the reporting unit		
-from the entity or any related party in connection with the	35,000	35,000
management of the reporting unit		
Names of those members of Committee of Management and other members of Na office during the financial year can be found in page 5.	tional Board who	have held
(b) Key Management Personnel		
Short term employment benefits	282 425	260 157
Salary Annual leave accrued	283,425	269,157
	6,520	10,334
Total short-term employee benefits	289,945	279,491
Post-employment benefits:		
Superannuation	25,000	25,000
Total post-employment benefits	25,000	25,000
Other long-term benefits:		
Long-service leave	-	-
Total other long-term benefits	-	-
Termination benefits		-
	-	
Total	314,945	304,491

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)		
(c) Other Related Parties		
The reporting unit is the representative body for hotels and other		
associated hospitality entities in Australia.		
Amounts paid to the NSW association for accounting, TAA CEO service, media support, secretarial service and others	225,141	217,784
Amounts paid to the ACT association for general administration	25,000	16,046
Amounts paid to the WA association for marketing, policy support and reimbursements	55,181	73,543
Amounts paid to the TAS association for reimbursements	20,949	4,522
Amounts paid to the VIC association for reimbursements	511	1,513
Amounts received from AHA ACT - rent	12,500	12,500
Total	339,282	325,908

Affiliation fees and capitation fees receved from States are disclosed in Note 2(a).

All State associations receive remuneration for actual expenses incurred and these amounts are disclosed in the relevant expense category of the statement of comprehensive income. Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial term and conditions no more favourable than those available to other persons unless otherwise stated.

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES

Financial support provided to enable the reporting unit to continue as a going concern

Australian Hotels Association — National Body's ability to continue as a going concern is not reliant on the agreed financial support of another reporting unit(s).

Financial support provided to another reporting unit to ensure they have the ability to continue as a going concern

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not agreed to provide financial support to ensure another reporting unit(s) has the ability to continue as a going concern.

Acquisition of an asset or liability during the financial year

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not acquired an asset or liability during the financial year as a result of:

- a) an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3, of the RO Act; or
- b) a restructure of the reporting units of the organisation; or
- c) a determination by the General Manager; or
- d) a revocation by the General Manager.

Financial support received from another reporting unit

The Australian Hotels Association - National Body has not received any financial support from another reporting unit of the organisation during the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions The Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not incur any expenses as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions.

Capitation fees paid

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body is not required to pay and did not pay capitation fees to another reporting unit of the organisation.

Payment to former related party of the reporting unit

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body is not required to pay and did not pay any former related party of the reporting unit.

Fees and periodic subscriptions

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not paid fees and periodic subscriptions in respect of its affiliation to any political party, any federation, congress, council or group of organisations, or any international body having an interest in industrial matters during the financial year.

Compulsory levies imposed

No compulsory levies were imposed on the Australian Hotels Association — National Body during the financial

Fees or allowances paid to persons to attend a conferences or other meeting as a representative of the reporting unit

Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not provide allowances and subsistence during the financial year to attend meetings (2019: \$16,715).

Penalties imposed under the RO Act

No penalties were imposed on Australian Hotel Association - National Body under the RO Act with respect to conduct of the Association. In prior year, penalties totalling \$157,500 were imposed on the Organisation by the Federal Court of Australia in relation to conduct by the Queensland Branch in respect of various failures to lodge prescribed information forms under s.189 of the RO Act and various failures to report changes in office holders under s.233 of the RO Act (See ROC v AHA [2019] FCA 1516).

Payables to employers as consideration for the employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions

There were no instances of payables of this nature as at year end.

Name and balance of each fund or account in respect to compulsory levies or voluntary contributions

Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not operate any funds or accounts in respect of compulsory levies raised by the reporting unit or voluntary contributions collected from members of the reporting unit during the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Details of any transfer or withdrawals to a fund, account or controlled entity

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has made no transfer(s) and/or withdrawal(s) to a fund, account or controlled entity, when any of these are kept for a specific purpose(s) by the reporting unit during the financial year.

Details of any transfer or withdrawals to a fund, account or controlled entity

No other reporting unit and/or controlled entity of the organisation was the source of a cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow during the financial year.

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The reporting unit's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with bank, short term investments, and investments in listed shares, receivables and payables.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 13 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

		2020	2019
		\$	\$
Financial assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	5	868,829	643,520
Financial assets at amortised cost			
- Trade and other receivables	6	217,800	261,082
- Term Deposits	8	1,000,000	700,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income			
- Shares in listed companies	8	779	779
		2,087,408	1,605,381
Financial liabilities			
Financial liabilities at amortised cost			
- Trade and other payables	10	93,501	167,560
- Contract liabilities	12	433,249	442,277
		526,750	609,837

Financial risk management policies

The reporting unit's Treasurer is responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing financial risk exposures of the reporting unit. The Treasurer monitors the reporting unit's transactions and reviews the effectiveness of controls relating to credit risk, financial risk and interest rate risk. Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures are held bi-monthly and minuted by the committee of management.

The Treasurer's overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the reporting unit meets its financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Specific financial risk exposures and management

The main risks the entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the reporting unit is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the reporting unit's objectives, policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period.

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contractual obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the reporting unit. Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures (such as the utilisation of systems for the approval, granting and removal of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposure against such limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties) ensuring, to the extent possible, that members and counterparties to transactions are of sound credit-worthiness. Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintains a high credit rating or in entities that the committee has otherwise assessed as being financially sound.

Credit risk exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the reporting period is equivalent to the carrying amount and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. There is no collateral held by the association securing trade and other receivables. Accounts receivable and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be high credit quality, the reporting unit has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the reporting unit might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. the reporting unit manages its risk through the following mechanisms:

- preparing forward-looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and financing activities; and
- only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions.

The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities, the reporting unit does not hold directly any derivative financial liabilities.

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management's expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis

	Within 1 Year	1 to 5 Years	Over 5 Years	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
2020				
Financial liabilities due for payment				
Trade and other payables	109,450	-		109,450
Total contractual and expected outflows	109,450	-	-	109,450
2020				
Financial assets - cash flows realisable				
Cash and cash equivalents	868,829	-	-	868,829
Trade and other receivables	217,800	-	-	217,800
Financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	-	-	1,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through other	779	-	-	779
comprehensive income				
Total anticipated inflows	2,087,408	-	-	2,087,408
Net inflows on financial instruments	1,977,958		<u> </u>	1,977,958
	Within 1 Year	1 to 5 Years	Over 5 Years	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
2019				
Financial liabilities due for payment				
Trade and other payables	132,647		-	132,647
Total contractual and expected outflows	132,647	-	-	132,647
2019				
Financial assets - cash flows realisable				
Cash and cash equivalents	643,520	-	-	643,520
Trade and other receivables	261,082	-	-	261,082
Financial assets at amortised cost	700,000	-		700,000
Findicial assets at anto tised tost	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	779	-	-	779
Financial assets at fair value through other	-	-	-	779

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Net fair values

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying values as presented in the balance sheet. Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have a material impact on the amounts estimated. Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets that are actively traded. In this regard, fair values for listed securities are obtained from quoted market bid prices.

	2020		2019	
	Net Carrying Amount	Net Fair Value	Carrying Amount	Net Fair Value
Financial assets	\$	\$	\$	\$
Cash and cash equivalents	868,829	868,829	643,520	643,520
Trade and other receivables	217,800	217,800	261,082	261,082
Financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	1,000,000	700,000	700,000
Financial assets at fair value through other				
comprehensive income	779	779	779	779
	2,087,408	2,087,408	1,605,381	1,605,381
Financial liabilities				
Trade and other payables	93,501	93,501	167,560	167,560
Contract liabilities	433,249	433,249	442,277	442,277
	526,750	526,750	609,837	609,837

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other debtors and accounts payable and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value. Accounts payable and other payables exclude amounts relating to the provision for annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASB 13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1: Quote prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at measurements date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Valuation Techniques

The reporting unit selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the reporting unit is consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

- Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.
- Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single discounted present value.
- Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the reporting unit gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments held at reporting date, recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

	Level 1 \$	Level 2 \$	Level 3 \$	Total \$
2020				
Non-financial Assets				
- Property, plant & equipment	-	1,185,580	-	1,185,580
Total assets	-	1,185,580		1,185,580
2019				
Non-financial Assets				
- Property, plant & equipment	-	1,217,155	-	1,217,155
Total assets	-	1,217,155	-	1,217,155

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the reporting unit's exposures to changes in interest rates and equity prices. The table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables.

	Financial assets		
	Profit	Equity	
	\$	\$	
Year ended 31 December 2020			
+/- 1% in interest rates	18,688	18,688	
+/- 10% in listed investments	78	78	
Year ended 31 December 2019			
+/- 1% in interest rates	13,435	13,435	
+/- 10% in listed investments	78	78	

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk as the reporting unit has no significant exposure to currency risk.

There have been no changes in any of the assumptions used to prepare the above sensitivity analysis from the prior year.

NOTE 19: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The reporting unit has no contingent liabilities and assets at the end of the financial year (2019: \$nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 20: SECTION 272 FAIR WORK (REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner:

- A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the
- 2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit.
- 3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).

NOTE 21: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and while it has been financially positive for the reporting unit up to 31 December 2020, it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government and other countries, such as maintaining social distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.

Except for the Coronavirus (COVID-19) and subsequent government actions, the impacts of which on the business cannot be determined at this time, there has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 31 December 2020 which has significantly affected or which may significantly affect:

- a) the operations, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2020
- b) the results of those operations, or
- c) state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2020.

NOTE 22: REPORTING UNIT DETAILS

The registered office and principal place of business of the reporting unit is:

Australian Hotels Association 27 Murray Crescent GRIFFITH ACT 2603

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

On the date below, the Committee of Management of the Australian Hotels Association passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion:

- 1. the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
- the financial statements and notes comply with any other regularements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act);
- 3. the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;
- there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and

5. during the financial to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:

- (a) meetings of the Committee of Management were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
- (b) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
- (c) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; and
- (d) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and
- (e) where information sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or the Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information has been provided to the member or the Commissioner; and
- (f) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

SCOTT LEACH National President

Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer



Level 16, Tower 2 Darling Park 201 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000

Postal Address GPO Box 1615 Sydney NSW 2001

p. +61 2 9221 2099
 e. sydneypartners@pitcher.com.au

Independent Auditor's Report To the Members of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ("the Association"), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, committee of management statement and the subsection 255(2A) report.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Association as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with:

- a) the Australian Accounting Standards; and
- b) any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).

We declare that management's use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements of the Association is appropriate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)* ("the Code") that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Committee of Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is in the operating report accompanying the financial report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Adelaide Brisbane Melbourne Newcastle Perth Sydney

37



Independent Auditor's Report To the Members of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961



In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Committee of Management for the Financial Report

The Committee of Management of the Association is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for such internal control as the Committee of Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Committee of Management is responsible for assessing the Association's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Committee of Management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Committee of Management.

Independent Auditor's Report To the Members of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961



- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the reporting unit to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the reporting unit audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Committee of Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the RO Act.

C I Chandran Partner

23 June 2021

Pitcher Partners Sydney

Registration number (as registered by the Commissioner under the RO Act): AC2017/72

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

-	
Certificate by Prescribed Designated Officer	1
Report Required Under Subsection 255(2A)	2
Operating Report	3 - 5
Statement of Comprehensive Income	6
Statement of Financial Position	7
Statement of Changes in Equity	8
Statement of Changes in Cash Flows	9
Notes to the Financial Statements	10 - 35
Committee of Management Statement	36
Independent Auditor's Report	37 - 39

CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I, David Basheer, being the Honorary Secretary/Treasurer of the Australian Hotels Association - National Body certify:

- that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Australian Hotels Association - National Body for the period ended referred to in s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and
- that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 31 May 2021; and
- that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Committee of Management of the reporting unit on 3 June 2020 in accordance with s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer

Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

REPORT REQUIRED UNDER SUBSECTION 255(2A) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) on the reporting unit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
Categories of Expenditures:		
Remuneration and other employment-related costs and expenses- employees	512,536	603,063
Advertising		\sim
Operating costs	530,290	591,675
Donations to political parties	73,956	299,001
Legal costs	28,635	29,880
Total	1,145,417	1,523,619

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer

Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

OPERATING REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Committee of Management presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the reporting unit, as conducted through the council and the executive board during the past year fell into the following categories:

- Provision of industrial support to members including advice on legal and legislative matters, contractual obligations and representation of state members. Administration of Federal awards, the variation of awards following major test cases.
- Media and communications to members and to the broader community via media releases in support of campaigns, targeted publications including national magazines.
- Provision of information for members providing up to date material relevant to hotels.
- Organisation of events to members such as Awards for Excellence, National Convention, charity fundraising etc. in order to recognise their achievements and contribution to the community.

Review of Principal Activities

The Committee of Management has reviewed its principal activities and is satisfied that activities have been successfully conducted throughout the year.

Results of Operations

The results of the reporting unit's activities were consistent with the reporting unit's aims and activities.

The operating surplus for the year ended 31 December 2020 is \$603,013 (2019: surplus of \$15,770). The Management committee has considered the going concern principle and is satisfied that the going concern concept is appropriate.

The COVID 19 had no significant impact on the revenue and the Association's expenses significantly reduced due to various travels not taking place due to restrictions.

Significant Changes in the Nature of Principal Activities and Financial Affairs

There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities and financial affairs undertaken by the reporting unit during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Right of Members to Resign

Members have the right to resign their membership in accordance with rule 32, which reads as follows:

- 1) A member of the reporting unit may resign from membership by written notice addressed and delivered to the Branch Secretary of the Branch of which it is a member.
- 2) A notice of resignation from membership of the reporting unit takes effect:
 - (a) Where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the reporting unit:
 - (i) on the day on which the notice is received by the reporting unit; or
 - (ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; whichever is later; or

OPERATING REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Right of Members to Resign (Continued)

Members have the right to resign their membership in accordance with rule 32, which reads as follows:

- 2) A notice of resignation from membership of the reporting unit takes effect: (Continued)
 - (b) In any other case:
 - (i) at the end of two (2) weeks after the notice is received by the reporting unit; or
 - (ii) on the day specified in the notice;
 - (iii) whichever is later
- 3)

Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of the reporting unit, in relation to a period before the member's resignation from the reporting unit took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the name of the reporting unit in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the reporting unit.

- 4) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in sub rule (1) shall be taken to have been received by the reporting unit when it was delivered.
- 5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the reporting unit is not invalid because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub rule (1).
- 6) A resignation from membership of the reporting unit is valid even if it is not affected in accordance with the rule if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the reporting unit that the resignation has been accepted.

Officers or members who are Superannuation Fund Trustee(s) or Director of a Company that is a

Superannuation Fund Trustee

Mr. Mark Robertson (who is an executive member) is also director of Hostplus Superannuation Industry Fund representing the National Body. The alternate director is Neil Randail.

Number of Members

The number of persons who, at the end of the reporting period, were recorded on the Register of Members of the reporting unit was 5,334.

Number of Employees

The number of persons who, at the end of the reporting period, employees of the reporting unit comprised of 1 full time and 2 part time staff.

OPERATING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the following persons held membership of the Committee of Management of the reporting unit:

Name ,	Position
Scott Leach	President
David Basheer	Secretary/Treasurer
John Dabner	President Accommodation Division
Paul Jubb	Branch President TAS
David Canny	Senior Vice President
Neil Randall	Branch President WA
Paul Palmer	Vice President
Michael Capezio	Branch President ACT
Tom McGuire	Branch President QLD

Full year Full year

Period Position Held

Members of National Board who have held office during the financial year:

Andrew Clark Andrew Cairns Andrew Bullock Ashok Parekh Craig Jervis David Canny David Curry **David Basheer Des Kennedy** Joanne Blair John Dabner Kim Maloney OAM Lynette Humphreys Mark Robertson OAM Martin Peirson Jones Matthew Nikakis

Matthew Binns Michael Capezio Neil Randall Paul Stocks Paul Jubb Paul Palmer Peter Harris **Philip Webster Richard Deery Rolly De With** Scott Leach Scott Armstrong Todd Handy Tom McGuire **Tony Condon** Anthony Page

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

5

1,

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
10 m	Note	\$	\$
Revenue from contracts with customers	2		
Membership subscription	2(a)		
Affiliation fees	2(a)	2,400	2,400
Capitation fees	2(a)	955,904	955,904
Other revenue	2(b)	1,022,135	1,141,236
Total revenue from contracts with customers		1,980,439	2,099,540
Income for furthering objectives	2		
Grants and donations	2(c)	100,000	
Total income for furthering objectives		100,000	2
Other income			
Revenue from recovery of wages activity	2(d)	-	-
Interest income	2(d)	9,356	17,782
Other income	2(d)	168,168	305,414
Total other income		177,524	323,196
Total income		2,257,963	2,422,736
Expenses:			
Accommodation divisional survey and operational costs		(305,246)	(402,593)
Affiliation fees		5 <u>1</u>)	800
Employee benefits expenses	3(a)	(512,536)	(603,063)
Depreciation expenses	9,13	(57,056)	(36,231)
Consultancy expenses		(56,325)	(30,000)
Legal expenses	3(d)	(28,635)	(29,880)
Marketing and convention expenses		(3,909)	(246,314)
Executive and Council conferences and meetings		(14,168)	(16,715)
Travel expenses		(67,569)	(148,355)
Bank charges and finance costs		(5,260)	(3,139)
Administration expenses	3(b)	(530,290)	(591,675)
Donations	3(c)	(73,956)	(299,001)
Total expenses	~	(1,654,950)	(2,406,966)
Surplus for the year		603,013	15,770
Other comprehensive income			-
Total comprehensive income attributable to the members		603,013	15,770

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

S S ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents 5 868,829 643,520 Financial assets 8 1,000,000 700,000 Trade and other receivables 6 217,800 261,082 Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 2,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 13 2,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,589,964 667,475 NON-CU		Note	2020	2019
CURRENT ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents 5 868,829 643,520 Financial assets 8 1,000,000 700,000 Trade and other receivables 6 217,800 261,082 Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 13 70,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 2,2,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,58,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 Lease liabilities 13 45,780 <th></th> <th></th> <th>\$</th> <th>\$</th>			\$	\$
Cash and cash equivalents 5 868,829 643,520 Financial assets 8 1,000,000 700,000 Trade and other receivables 6 217,800 261,082 Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 28,580 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118	ASSETS			
Financial assets 8 1,000,000 700,000 Trade and other receivables 6 217,800 261,082 Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,798,994 2,195,981 TOTAL LIA	CURRENT ASSETS			
Trade and other receivables 6 217,800 261,082 Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 2,2206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY <td< td=""><td>Cash and cash equivalents</td><td>5</td><td>868,829</td><td>643,520</td></td<>	Cash and cash equivalents	5	868,829	643,520
Other current assets 7 91,522 16,103 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 2,622 Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 LOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994	Financial assets	8	1,000,000	700,000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,178,151 1,620,705 NON-CURRENT ASSETS Financial assets 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 2,2,06 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LOR-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 885,378 885,378	Trade and other receivables	6	217,800	261,082
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Financial assets 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,310,603 1,310,603 1,310,603	Other current assets	7	91,522	16,103
Financial assets 8 779 779 Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 22,206 24,996 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,310,603 1,310,603 1,310,603	TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		2,178,151	1,620,705
Property, plant and equipment 9 1,185,580 1,217,155 Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	NON-CURRENT ASSETS			
Right of use asset 13 66,228 88,935 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES 3,430,738 2,927,574 CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603 1,913,616	Financial assets	8	779	779
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,252,587 1,306,869 TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Property, plant and equipment	9	1,185,580	1,217,155
TOTAL ASSETS 3,430,738 2,927,574 LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Right of use asset	13	66,228	88,935
LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS		1,252,587	1,306,869
CURRENT LIABILITIES Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,798,994 2,195,981 64,118 Retained surplus 885,378 885,378 885,378	TOTAL ASSETS		3,430,738	2,927,574
Trade and other payables 10 93,501 167,560 Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 33 22,206 24,996 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	LIABILITIES			
Provisions 11 37,008 32,642 Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,310,603 1,310,603	CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Contract liabilities 12 433,249 442,277 Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 13 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Trade and other payables	10	93,501	167,560
Lease liabilities 13 22,206 24,996 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 585,964 667,475 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Provisions	11	37,008	32,642
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES585,964667,475NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES1345,78064,118Lease liabilities1345,78064,118TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES45,78064,118TOTAL LIABILITIES631,744731,593NET ASSETS2,798,9942,195,981EQUITYAsset revaluation reserve885,378Retained surplus1,913,6161,310,603	Contract liabilities	12	433,249	442,277
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIESLease liabilities1345,78064,118TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES45,78064,118TOTAL LIABILITIES631,744731,593NET ASSETS2,798,9942,195,981EQUITYAsset revaluation reserve885,378885,378Retained surplus1,913,6161,310,603	Lease liabilities	13	22,206	24,996
Lease liabilities 13 45,780 64,118 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,780 64,118 TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES		585,964	667,475
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES45,78064,118TOTAL LIABILITIES631,744731,593NET ASSETS2,798,9942,195,981EQUITY885,378885,378Retained surplus1,913,6161,310,603	NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
TOTAL LIABILITIES 631,744 731,593 NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Lease liabilities	13	45,780	64,118
NET ASSETS 2,798,994 2,195,981 EQUITY Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES		45,780	64,118
EQUITYAsset revaluation reserve885,378Retained surplus1,913,6161,310,603	TOTAL LIABILITIES		631,744	731,593
Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	NET ASSETS		2,798,994	2,195,981
Asset revaluation reserve 885,378 885,378 Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	EQUITY			
Retained surplus 1,913,616 1,310,603	Asset revaluation reserve		885,378	885,378
TOTAL EQUITY 2,798,994 2,195,981	Retained surplus			
	TOTAL EQUITY		2,798,994	2,195,981

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	Asset revaluation reserve	Retained surplus	Total
Balance at 1 January 2019	885,378	1,294,833	2,180,211
Net surplus attributable to members of the entity		15,770	15,770
Revaluation of Buildings		-	-
Balance at 31 December 2019	885,378	1,310,603	2,195,981
Net surplus attributable to members of the entity	2	603,013	603,013
Revaluation of Buildings	· · ·	-	1-0
Balance at 31 December 2020	885,378	1,913,616	2,798,994

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Receipts from capitation fees		1,051,494	1,051,494
Receipts from promotional and sundry activities		1,179,806	1,750,871
Interest received		9,356	17,782
Dividends received		21	67
Receipts from Government subsidy		100,000	5 <u>4</u> 5
Payments to employees, promotional expenses and		(1,791,096)	(2,526,208)
other expenses			
Interest paid		(370)	(370)
Net cash provided by operating activities	15	549,211	293,636
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Payments for property, plant and equipment		(2,774)	-
Payments for financial assets		(300,000)	(700,000)
Net cash used in investing activities		(302,774)	(700,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Repayment of lease liabilities		(21,128)	(1,713)
Net cash used in financing activities		(21,128)	(1,713)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held		225,309	(408,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		643,520	1,051,597
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	5	868,829	643,520

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are for Australian Hotels Association - National Body (the "reporting unit").

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Accounting Standards and Australian Board ("AASB") and the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009*. The reporting unit is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 31 May 2021 by the Members of the Committee.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the reporting unit in the preparation of the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

the reporting unit is exempt from income tax under Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost of fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Freehold property

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Increases in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Revaluation decreases that offset previous increases of the same class shall be recognised in other comprehensive income under the heading of revaluation surplus. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss. As the revalued buildings are depreciated, the difference between depreciation recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, which is based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost, is transferred from the revaluation surplus to retained earnings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The valuation has taken into account the requirements of AASB 116 which defines 'fair value' and the concepts of 'market value'. The date of the valuation was 30 June 2019 and the property was inspected on 4 July 2019.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and is therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over the asset's useful life commencing from the time the asset is available for use. The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Class of fixed asset	Depreciation rate
Buildings	2.5%
Office equipment	17% - 27%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(c) Leases

At inception of a contract, the reporting unit assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is considered to contain a lease if it allows the reporting unit the right to control the use of an identified asset over a period of time in return for consideration.

Where a contract or arrangement contains a lease, the reporting unit recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the lease.

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which is the present value of future lease payments adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any make-good obligations and initial direct costs incurred. Lease assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of their useful life and the lease term. Periodic adjustments are made for any remeasurements of the lease liabilities and for impairment losses.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of future minimum lease payments, discounted using the reporting unit's incremental borrowing rate if the rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate. Minimum lease payments include fixed payments, amounts expected to be paid under a residual value guarantee, the exercise price of purchase options for which the reporting unit is reasonably certain to exercise and incorporate the reporting unit's expectations of lease extension options.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Leases (Continued)

At inception of a contract, the reporting unit assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is considered to contain a lease if it allows the reporting unit the right to control the use of an identified asset over a period of time in return for consideration.

Short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (\$10,000 or less) are recognised as incurred as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Low value assets comprise computers and items of IT equipment.

(d) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The reporting unit measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.

Fair value is the price the reporting unit would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (ie the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the reporting unit at the end of the reporting period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of liabilities may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.

(e) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the reporting unit becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the reporting unit commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified as fair value through profit or loss, in which case transaction costs are immediately recognised as expenses in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest method, or cost as applicable. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method.

The *effective interest method* is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a consequential recognition of an income or expense item in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm's length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets recognised by the reporting unit are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, subject to their classification and whether the reporting unit irrevocably designates the financial asset on initial recognition at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) in accordance with the relevant criteria in AASB 9 or fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities recognised by the reporting unit are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the reporting unit assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence that impairment as a result of one or more events (a "loss event") has occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account.

When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have been renegotiated, the reporting unit recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking into account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are duly considered.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the reporting unit no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the related obligations are discharged or cancelled, or have expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the profit or loss.

(f) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the reporting unit reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the reporting unit estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset.

(g) Employee benefits

Provision is made of the reporting unit's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may not satisfy vesting requirements. Those cash outflows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand; deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months of less and bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

(j) Revenue and other income

Reporting unit enters into various arrangements where it receives consideration from another party. These arrangements include consideration in the form of capitation fees, levies, grants, and donations.

The timing of recognition of these amounts as either revenue or income depends on the rights and obligations in those arrangements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Where reporting unit has a contract with a customer, reporting unit recognises revenue when or as it transfers control of goods or services to the customer. Reporting unit accounts for an arrangement as a contract with a customer if the following criteria are met:

- the arrangement is enforceable; and

- the arrangement contains promises (that are also known as performance obligations) to transfer goods or services to the customer (or to other parties on behalf of the customer) that are sufficiently specific so that it can be determined when the performance obligation has been satisfied.

Capitation fees

Where reporting unit's arrangement with a branch or another reporting unit meets the criteria to be a contract with a customer, reporting unit recognises the capitation fees promised under that arrangement when or as it transfers the reporting unit.

In circumstances where the criteria for a contract with a customer are not met, the reporting unit will recognise capitation fees as income upon receipt (as specified in the income recognition policy below).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Sponsorship revenue

Sponsorship revenue is recognised upon the execution of the contracts with the corporate sponsors and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the sponsorship contracts.

Income of reporting unit as a Not-for-Profit Entity

Consideration is received by reporting unit to enable the entity to further its objectives. Reporting unit recognises each of these amounts of consideration as income when the consideration is received (which is when reporting unit obtains control of the cash) because, based on the rights and obligations in each arrangement:

 the arrangements do not meet the criteria to be contracts with customers because either the arrangement is unenforceable or lacks sufficiently specific promises to transfer goods or services to the customer; and

- reporting unit's recognition of the cash contribution does not give rise to any related liabilities.

Reporting unit receives cash consideration from the following arrangements whereby that consideration is recognised as income upon receipt:

- donations and voluntary contributions from members; and

- government grants.

Interest income

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.

Rental income

Leases in which reporting unit, as a lessor, do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as income in the period in which they are earned.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of the GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office ("ATO").

Receivables and payables are stated as inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

(I) Comparative figures

When required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

Where the reporting unit has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

(m) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the reporting unit during the reporting period that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the reporting unit has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

(o) Liabilities Relating to Contracts with Customers

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before reporting unit transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities include deferred income. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when reporting unit performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The reporting unit evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the organisation.

Impairment - general

The reporting unit assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and events specific to the reporting unit that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts or relevant assets are reassessed, using value-in-use calculations, which incorporate various key assumptions.

(q) New Accounting Standards Adopted During the Financial Year

The reporting unit has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Impact on adoption of AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, "information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity." The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

Future Australian Accounting Standards

New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and are applicable to future reporting periods that are expected to have a future financial impact on the reporting unit include:

AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

This Standard amends AASB 101 *Presentation of Financial Statements* to clarify requirements for the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position as current or non-current. For example, the amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. This Standard applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted. The reporting unit does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have an impact on its financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME			

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

A disaggregation of reporting unit's revenue by type of arrangement is provided on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The table below also sets out a disaggregation of revenue by type of customer:

-	10.
958,304	958,304
100 E 100 E	_
1,022,135	1,141,236
1,980,439	2,099,540
	958,304 - 1,022,135

Disaggregation of income for furthering activities

A disaggregation of reporting unit's income by type of arrangement is provided on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The table below also sets out a disaggregation of income by funding source:

	Income funding sources			
	Members		-	5.
	Other reporting units			-
	Government		100,000	17
	Other parties		÷	
	Total income for furthering activities		100,000	-
(a)	Operating activities			
	Membership subscriptions		-	13-
	Levies from members		-	
	Other revenue from another reporting unit		-	
	Affiliation fees		2,400	2,400
	Capitation fees:			
	Capitation fees - general levy from States	(i)	449,904	449,904
	Capitation fees - TAA levy from States	(i)	506,000	506,000
	Total Capitation fees		955,904	955,904

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued)

(a) Operating activities (Continued)

(i) Breakdown of capitation fees from States

	General levy from States		TAA levy fro	m States
	2020	2019	2020	2019
	\$	\$	\$	\$
New South Wales	145,094	145,094	163,185	163,185
Victoria	112,476	112,476	126,500	126,500
Queensland	91,105	91,105	102,465	102,465
South Australia	32,618	32,618	36,685	36,685
Western Australia	49,489	49,489	55,660	55,660
Tasmania	10,122	10,122	11,385	11,385
Australian Capital Territory	4,500	4,500	5,060	5,060
Northern Territory	4,500	4,500	5,060	5,060
	449,904	449,904	506,000	506,000

There are no other revenue from another reporting unit other than those disclosed above.

		2020 \$	2019 \$
(b)	Other revenue		
	Promotional	1,022,135	1,141,236
(c)	Grants or donations		
	Grants - cashflow boost	100,000	-
	Donations	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	-
		100,000	-
(d)	Other income		
	Dividends received	21	67
	Revenue from recovery of wages activity		3 - 3
	Rental income	168,147	162,883
	Interest received	9,356	17,782
	Sundry income		142,464
		177,524	323,196
	Total revenue and other income	2,257,963	2,422,736

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 3: EXPENSES			(¥
3(a) Employee Expenses			
Holders of office:			
Wages and salaries		283,425	269,157
Superannuation		25,000	25,000
Leave and other entitlements		6,520	10,334
Separation and redundancies		1 1 1	
Other employee expenses		121	
		314,945	304,491
Employees other than office holders:			
Wages and salaries		180,849	260,033
Superannuation		18,896	37,308
Leave and other entitlements		(2,154)	1,231
Separation and redundancies		(_,,	-,
Other employee expenses		-	-
		197,591	298,572
Total employee expenses		512,536	603,063
			003,003
3(b) Administration expenses		5 (00)	5 600
Industrial relations expense		5,400	5,602
Accounting expenses		82,834	85,326
Body corporate and outgoings		89,862	67,856
Expenses incurred in relation to special project		11,332	3,885
Operating expenses		189,151	74,640
Insurance expenses		33,040	40,431
Power Purchase Agreement project		170) 100	168,944
Short term lease expenses		-	22,917
Sponsorship support		21,752	122.074
Subscriptions expenses		96,919	122,074
Total Operating Cost		550,290	591,675
3(c) Grants and Donations:			
Grants that were \$1,000 or less			-
Grants that exceeded \$1,000 or less		-	-
Donations that were \$1,000 or less		2,215	7,671
Donations that exceeded \$1,000		71,741	291,330
		73,956	299,001
3(d) Legal expenses include:			
Litigation		-	-
Other legal matters		28,635	29,880

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
	\$	\$
IOTE 4: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION		
emuneration of the auditor of the reporting unit for:		
uditing the financial statements	19,900	19,500
	19,900	19,500
OTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
ash at bank	868,829	643,520
	868,829	643,520
econciliation of Cash		
ash at the end of the financial year as shown in the financial		
tatement of Cash Flows is reconciled to items in the Statement		
f Financial Position as follows:		
1		
ash and cash equivalents	868,829	643,520
OTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES		
rade receivables:	217,800	261,082
ess: allowance for expected credit losses	-	
eceivable from another reporting unit	-	-
	217,800	261,082
OTE 7: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS		
repayments	91,522	16,103
OTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS		
URRENT		
nancial assets at amortised cost		
Financial assets at amortised cost:		
- Term deposits	1,000,000	700,000
otal financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	700,000
ON-CURRENT		
nancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income		
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:		
Listed investments, at fair value		
Listed investments, at fair value - Shares in Insurance Australia Group Limited	779	779

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT	2020 \$	2019 \$
Building - 24 Brisbane Avenue, Barton at fair value	1,450,000	1,450,000
Less: accumulated depreciation	(267,183)	(233,785)
	1,182,817	1,216,215
Office equipment - at cost	42,505	39,731
Less: accumulated depreciation	(39,742)	(38,791)
	2,763	940
Total property, plant and equipment	1,185,580	1,217,155

Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

		Office	
Movements in carrying amounts	Building	equipment	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Balance at 31 December 2018	1,249,613	1,881	1,251,494
Addition		1	-
Revaluation	-	-	-
Depreciation expense	(33,398)	(941)	(34,339)
Balance at 31 December 2019	1,216,215	940	1,217,155
Additions	-	2,774	2,774
Revaluations	-	-	-
Depreciation expense	(33,398)	(951)	(34,349)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020	1,182,817	2,763	1,185,580

The land and building, being located at Unit 1, 24 Brisbane Avenue, Barton was inspected by CBRE Valuations Pty Limited on 4 July 2019. The valuation of property has been determined on a 'market value' basis. The property is recognised at fair value based on the valuation performed as at 30 June 2019 is in line with the carrying value of the property. This is equivalent to fair value and in accordance with AASB 116, see note 18.

		2020	2019
	Note	\$	\$
NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			
Accounts payable - general		36,755	22,436
Payable to other reporting units		() - (-
Accounts payable - related to legal costs (other matters)		. .	-
Accounts payable - related to legal costs (litigation)			-
Accrued expenditure		48,171	69,893
Net GST (receivable)/payable		(15,949)	34,913
Other payables		24,524	40,318
		93,501	167,560

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
NOTE 11: PROVISIONS	\$	\$
Provision for annual leave - holders of office	37,008	30,488
Provision for annual leave - employees other than office holders		2,154
	37,008	32,642

There are no other provisions required to be recognised by the reporting unit other than those disclosed above.

NOTE 12: CONTRACT LIABILITIES		
Income received in advance	433,249	442,277
	433,249	442,277
NOTE 13: LEASES		
(i) Amount recognised in the statement of financial position		
Right of use asset - office	90,827	90,827
Accumulated depreciation - Right of use asset	(24,599)	(1,892)
	66,228	88,935
Lease liabilities - current	22,206	24,996
Lease liabilities - non-current	45,780	64,118
	67,986	89,114
No additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial year.		
(ii) Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income		
Depreciation charge - right of use asset	22,707	1,892
Interest expense (included in bank charges and finance costs)	3,872	370
	26,579	2,262

NOTE 14: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS	2020 \$	2019 \$
Operating lease commitments - as lessor		
Non-cancellable operating lease contracted for but not		
recognised in the financial statements		
Receivables - minimum lease receipts		
Not later than 12 months	166,733	168,250
Later than 12 months but not later than 5 years	27,946	202,069
	194,679	370,319

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 14: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The property lease commitment is a non-cancellable operating lease with a five year term, with rent received monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease receipts shall be increased by the Consumer Price Index.

NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION	2020 \$	2019 \$
(A) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with surplus		
Surplus	603,013	15,770
Non-cash flows in profit:		
Depreciation expense	57,056	36,231
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Decrease in trade receivables	43,282	144,785
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments	(75,419)	44,483
(Decrease) in trade and other payables	(74,059)	(9,837)
(Decrease)/increase in income received in advance	(9,028)	50,639
Increase in provisions	4,366	11,565
Net cash from operating activities	549,211	293,636
(B) Cash flow information		
Cash outflows		
Amounts paid to the NSW Association for accounting, TAA CEO service, media support, secretarial service and others	247,655	239,562
Amounts paid to the ACT Association for general administration	27,500	17,650
Amounts paid to the WA Association for marketing, policy support and reimbursements	60,699	80,897
Amounts paid to the TAS Association for reimbursements	23,044	4,974
Amounts paid to the VIC Association for reimbursements	562	1,664
Total cash outflows	359,460	344,747
Cash inflows		

Breakdown of capitation fees from States

	General levy from States		TAA levy fro	from States	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
	\$	\$	\$	\$	
New South Wales	159,603	159,603	197,453	197,453	
Victoria	123,724	123,724	153,064	153,064	
Queensland	100,217	100,217	123,983	123,983	
South Australia	35,880	35,880	44,389	44,389	
Western Australia	54,438	54,438	67,349	67,349	
Tasmania	11,135	11,135	13,776	13,776	
Australian Capital Territory	4,949	4,949	6,123	6,123	
Northern Territory	4,949	4,949	6,123	6,123	
	494,895	494,895	612,260	612,260	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020	2019
NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)	\$	\$
Breakdown of affiliation fees from States	330	330
New South Wales	330	330
Victoria Queensland	330	330
South Australia	330	330
Western Australia	330	330
Tasmania	330	330
Australian Capital Territory	330	330
Northern Territory	330	330
	2,640	2,640
Amounts received from the NSW Association for other reimbursements	-	15,752
Amounts received from the ACT Association for rent	13,750	13,750
NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS		
(a) Directors' remuneration		
Remuneration received or receivable by all directors of the reporting unit		
-from the entity or any related party in connection with the	35,000	35,000
management of the reporting unit		
Names of those members of Committee of Management and other members of N	ational Board who	have held
office during the financial year can be found in page 5.		
(b) Key Management Personnel		
Short term employment benefits		
Salary	283,425	269,157
Annual leave accrued	6,520	10,334
Total short-term employee benefits	289,945	279,491
Post-employment benefits:		
Superannuation	25,000	25,000
Total post-employment benefits	25,000	25,000
Other long-term benefits:		
Long-service leave		
Total other long-term benefits		
Termination benefits		27
Nova 2019 1999 1999 1999 1999 1999 1999 1999	-	
Total	314,945	304,491

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

	2020 \$	2019 \$
NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)	1.5	
(c) Other Related Parties		
The reporting unit is the representative body for hotels and other		
associated hospitality entities in Australia.		
Amounts paid to the NSW association for accounting, TAA CEO service, media support, secretarial service and others	225,141	217,784
Amounts paid to the ACT association for general administration	25,000	16,046
Amounts paid to the WA association for marketing, policy support and reimbursements	55,181	73,543
Amounts paid to the TAS association for reimbursements	20,949	4,522
Amounts paid to the VIC association for reimbursements	511	1,513
Amounts received from AHA ACT - rent	12,500	12,500
Total	339,282	325,908

Affiliation fees and capitation fees receved from States are disclosed in Note 2(a).

All State associations receive remuneration for actual expenses incurred and these amounts are disclosed in the relevant expense category of the statement of comprehensive income. Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial term and conditions no more favourable than those available to other persons unless otherwise stated.

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES

Financial support provided to enable the reporting unit to continue as a going concern

Australian Hotels Association — National Body's ability to continue as a going concern is not reliant on the agreed financial support of another reporting unit(s).

Financial support provided to another reporting unit to ensure they have the ability to continue as a going concern

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not agreed to provide financial support to ensure another reporting unit(s) has the ability to continue as a going concern.

Acquisition of an asset or liability during the financial year

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not acquired an asset or liability during the financial year as a result of:

- a) an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3, of the RO Act; or
- b) a restructure of the reporting units of the organisation; or
- c) a determination by the General Manager; or
- d) a revocation by the General Manager.

Financial support received from another reporting unit

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not received any financial support from another reporting unit of the organisation during the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not incur any expenses as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions.

Capitation fees paid

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body is not required to pay and did not pay capitation fees to another reporting unit of the organisation.

Payment to former related party of the reporting unit

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body is not required to pay and did not pay any former related party of the reporting unit.

Fees and periodic subscriptions

The Australian Hotels Association — National Body has not paid fees and periodic subscriptions in respect of its affiliation to any political party, any federation, congress, council or group of organisations, or any international body having an interest in industrial matters during the financial year.

Compulsory levies imposed

No compulsory levies were imposed on the Australian Hotels Association — National Body during the financial

Fees or allowances paid to persons to attend a conferences or other meeting as a representative of the reporting unit

Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not provide allowances and subsistence during the financial year to attend meetings (2019: \$16,715).

Penalties imposed under the RO Act

No penalties were imposed on Australian Hotel Association - National Body under the RO Act with respect to conduct of the Association. In prior year, penalties totalling \$157,500 were imposed on the Organisation by the Federal Court of Australia in relation to conduct by the Queensland Branch in respect of various failures to lodge prescribed information forms under s.189 of the RO Act and various failures to report changes in office holders under s.233 of the RO Act (See ROC v AHA [2019] FCA 1516).

Payables to employers as consideration for the employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions

There were no instances of payables of this nature as at year end.

Name and balance of each fund or account in respect to compulsory levies or voluntary contributions

Australian Hotels Association — National Body did not operate any funds or accounts in respect of compulsory levies raised by the reporting unit or voluntary contributions collected from members of the reporting unit during the financial year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 17: FURTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Details of any transfer or withdrawals to a fund, account or controlled entity

Australian Hotels Association — National Body has made no transfer(s) and/or withdrawal(s) to a fund, account or controlled entity, when any of these are kept for a specific purpose(s) by the reporting unit during the financial year.

Details of any transfer or withdrawals to a fund, account or controlled entity

No other reporting unit and/or controlled entity of the organisation was the source of a cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow during the financial year.

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The reporting unit's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with bank, short term investments, and investments in listed shares, receivables and payables.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 13 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

		2020 \$	2019 \$
Financial assets			24.5
Cash and cash equivalents	5	868,829	643,520
Financial assets at amortised cost			
- Trade and other receivables	6	217,800	261,082
- Term Deposits	8	1,000,000	700,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income			
- Shares in listed companies	8	779	779
		2,087,408	1,605,381
Financial liabilities			
Financial liabilities at amortised cost			
- Trade and other payables	10	93,501	167,560
- Contract liabilities	12	433,249	442,277
		526,750	609,837

Financial risk management policies

The reporting unit's Treasurer is responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing financial risk exposures of the reporting unit. The Treasurer monitors the reporting unit's transactions and reviews the effectiveness of controls relating to credit risk, financial risk and interest rate risk. Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures are held bi-monthly and minuted by the committee of management.

The Treasurer's overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the reporting unit meets its financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Specific financial risk exposures and management

The main risks the entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the reporting unit is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the reporting unit's objectives, policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period.

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contractual obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the reporting unit. Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures (such as the utilisation of systems for the approval, granting and removal of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposure against such limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties) ensuring, to the extent possible, that members and counterparties to transactions are of sound credit-worthiness. Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintains a high credit rating or in entities that the committee has otherwise assessed as being financially sound.

Credit risk exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the reporting period is equivalent to the carrying amount and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. There is no collateral held by the association securing trade and other receivables. Accounts receivable and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be high credit quality. the reporting unit has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the reporting unit might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. the reporting unit manages its risk through the following mechanisms:

- preparing forward-looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and financing activities; and
- only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions.

The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities. the reporting unit does not hold directly any derivative financial liabilities.

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management's expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis

	Within 1 Year Ś	1 to 5 Years \$	Over 5 Years \$	Total \$
2020	Ŷ	*	•	
Financial liabilities due for payment				
Trade and other payables	109,450	-	÷.	109,450
Total contractual and expected outflows	109,450	-		109,450
2020				
Financial assets - cash flows realisable				
Cash and cash equivalents	868,829	-	0.00	868,829
Trade and other receivables	217,800	-	74.7	217,800
Financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	1.87 (0 3)		1,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	779	5 4 0	~	779
Total anticipated inflows	2,087,408	-	-	2,087,408
Net inflows on financial instruments	1,977,958		<u> </u>	1,977,958
	Within 1 Year	1 to 5 Years	Over 5 Years	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
2019				
Financial liabilities due for payment				
Trade and other payables	132,647		-	132,647
Total contractual and expected outflows	132,647	-		132,647
2019				
Financial assets - cash flows realisable				
Cash and cash equivalents	643,520	-	-	643,520
Trade and other receivables	261,082	-	(*)	261,082
Financial assets at amortised cost	700,000	-	121	700,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	779	-	8 - 3	779
Total anticipated inflows	1,605,381	-	-	1,605,381
Net inflows on financial instruments	1,472,734			1,472,734

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Net fair values

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying values as presented in the balance sheet. Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have a material impact on the amounts estimated. Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets that are actively traded. In this regard, fair values for listed securities are obtained from quoted market bid prices.

	2020		2019	
*	Net Carrying Amount	Net Fair Value	Carrying Amount	Net Fair Value
Financial assets	\$	\$	\$	\$
Cash and cash equivalents	868,829	868,829	643,520	643,520
Trade and other receivables	217,800	217,800	261,082	261,082
Financial assets at amortised cost	1,000,000	1,000,000	700,000	700,000
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	779	779	779	779
	2,087,408	2,087,408	1,605,381	1,605,381
Financial liabilities				
Trade and other payables	93,501	93,501	167,560	167,560
Contract liabilities	433,249	433,249	442,277	442,277
	526,750	526,750	609,837	609,837

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other debtors and accounts payable and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value. Accounts payable and other payables exclude amounts relating to the provision for annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASB 13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1: Quote prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at measurements date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Valuation Techniques

The reporting unit selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the reporting unit is consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

- Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.
- Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single discounted present value.
- Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the reporting unit gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments held at reporting date, recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
2020				
Non-financial Assets			2	
- Property, plant & equipment	-	1,185,580	-	1,185,580
Total assets		1,185,580	-	1,185,580
2019				
Non-financial Assets				
- Property, plant & equipment	-	1,217,155		1,217,155
Total assets		1,217,155		1,217,155

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the reporting unit's exposures to changes in interest rates and equity prices. The table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables.

	Financial	assets
	Profit	Equity
	\$	\$
Year ended 31 December 2020		
+/- 1% in interest rates	18,688	18,688
+/- 10% in listed investments	78	78
Year ended 31 December 2019		
+/- 1% in interest rates	13,435	13,435
+/- 10% in listed investments	78	78

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk as the reporting unit has no significant exposure to currency risk.

There have been no changes in any of the assumptions used to prepare the above sensitivity analysis from the prior year.

NOTE 19: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The reporting unit has no contingent liabilities and assets at the end of the financial year (2019: \$nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 20: SECTION 272 FAIR WORK (REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009

In accordance with the requirements of the *Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009*, the attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner:

- 1) A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the
- 2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit.
- 3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).

NOTE 21: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and while it has been financially positive for the reporting unit up to 31 December 2020, it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. The situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government and other countries, such as maintaining social distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.

Except for the Coronavirus (COVID-19) and subsequent government actions, the impacts of which on the business cannot be determined at this time, there has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 31 December 2020 which has significantly affected or which may significantly affect:

- a) the operations, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2020
- b) the results of those operations, or
- c) state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2020.

NOTE 22: REPORTING UNIT DETAILS

The registered office and principal place of business of the reporting unit is:

Australian Hotels Association 27 Murray Crescent GRIFFITH ACT 2603

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

On the date below, the Committee of Management of the Australian Hotels Association passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion:

- 1. the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
- the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act);

the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;

- there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
- 5. during the financial to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:
 - (a) meetings of the Committee of Management were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
 - (b) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
 - (c) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; and
 - (d) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and
 - (e) where information sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or the Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information has been provided to the member or the Commissioner; and
 - (f) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

SCOTT LEACH National President

Dated this 23rd day of June 2021.

DAVID BASHEER National Secretary/Treasurer



Level 16, Tower 2 Darling Park 201 Sussex Street Sydney NSW 2000

Postal Address GPO Box 1615 Sydney NSW 2001

p. +61 2 9221 2099 *e.* sydneypartners@pitcher.com.au

Independent Auditor's Report To the Members of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ("the Association"), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, committee of management statement and the subsection 255(2A) report.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Association as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with:

- a) the Australian Accounting Standards; and
- b) any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).

We declare that management's use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements of the Association is appropriate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)* ("the Code") that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Committee of Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is in the operating report accompanying the financial report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Adelaide Brisbane Melbourne Newcastle Perth Sydney

37



pitcher.com.au



In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Committee of Management for the Financial Report

The Committee of Management of the Association is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for such internal control as the Committee of Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Committee of Management is responsible for assessing the Association's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Committee of Management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Committee of Management.

Independent Auditor's Report To the Members of Australian Hotels Association – National Body ABN 78 756 030 961



- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the reporting unit to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the reporting unit audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Committee of Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the RO Act.

C I Chandran Partner

23 June 2021

Pitcher Partners Sydney

Registration number (as registered by the Commissioner under the RO Act): AC2017/72